
Lancashire County Council

Executive Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday, 8th November, 2016 at 2.00 pm in Cabinet Room 'C' - The Duke of 
Lancaster Room, County Hall, Preston 

Agenda

Part I (Open to Press and Public)

No. Item

1. Apologies  

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-pecuniary 
Interests  
Members are asked to consider any Pecuniary or Non-
pecuniary Interests they may have to disclose to the 
meeting in relation to matters under consideration on 
the Agenda.

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 4 October 2016  (Pages 1 - 8)

4. Forthcoming Individual Cabinet Member Key 
Decisions  

(a) Procurement Report - Request for Approval to 
Commence Procurement Exercises  

(Pages 9 - 24)

(b) Review of Tendered Bus Services in Ribble 
Valley  
(Report to Follow)

5. Urgent Business  
An item of urgent business may only be considered 
under this heading where, by reason of special 
circumstances to be recorded in the Minutes, the Chair 
of the meeting is of the opinion that the item should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 
Wherever possible, the Chief Executive should be 
given advance warning of any Member's intention to 
raise a matter under this heading.

6. Date of Next Meeting  
The next meeting of the Executive Scrutiny Committee 
will be held on Tuesday, 6 December 2016 at 2pm, 
County Hall, Preston.



7. Exclusion of Press and Public  
The Committee is asked to consider whether, under 
Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, it 
considers that the public should be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of the following items of 
business on the grounds that there would be a likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
appropriate paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act, 1972, as indicated against the 
heading to the item.

Part II (Not Open to Press and Public)

8. Forthcoming Individual Cabinet Member Key 
Decisions  
(a) Award of Vehicle Body Building Framework 

Agreement - Lots 6, 8, 9, 11  
(Pages 25 - 28)

(Not for Publication - Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. It is 
considered that in all the circumstances of the case the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information.)

(b) Approval to Award Contracts for Care and 
Support Services in Lancashire Prisons  

(Pages 29 - 32)

(Not for Publication – Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.  It is 
considered that in all the circumstances of the case the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information.) 

(c) Primary Care Commissions  (Pages 33 - 38)
(Not for Publication – Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.  It is 
considered that in all the circumstances of the case the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information.)

I Young
Director of Governance, 
Finance and Public Services 

County Hall
Preston



Lancashire County Council 

Executive Scrutiny Committee

Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday, 4th October, 2016 at 2.00 pm in 
Cabinet Room 'C' - The Duke of Lancaster Room, County Hall, Preston

Present:
County Councillor Bill Winlow (Chair)

County Councillors

A Barnes 
A Atkinson 
L Beavers 
B Dawson 
S Holgate 
K Iddon

D O'Toole 
J Oakes 
N Penney 
S Perkins 
D T Smith 
D Westley

County Councillors L Beavers, K Iddon, D Smith and D Westley replaced County 
Councillors D Clifford, Mrs S Charles, G Driver and M Green at the meeting.

1. Apologies

None.

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-pecuniary Interests

County Councillor A Barnes declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 4c 
(Property Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) Consultation) as she was Chair of 
the Crawshawbooth Community Association and also Leader of Rossendale 
Borough Council.

County Councillor J Oakes also declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 4c as 
she was the chair of the Whitewell Bottom Community Association.

County Councillor A Atkinson declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 9b 
(Award of Contracts for the Acceptance and Composting of Green Waste Arising 
in the Administrative County of Lancashire and Blackpool) as he was a director of 
Global Renewables Lancashire Operations Ltd.

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 2016

Resolved: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 2016 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair.

Page 1

Item 3



4. Reports for decision by Cabinet

The Committee considered the following decisions due to be taken by the 
Cabinet.

a. Statutory Services Budget Review - PwC report

Tim Gold and Amanda Newton, PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC), attended the 
meeting to present a report on PwC's independent review of the resources 
needed by the County Council to deliver its statutory services. PwC had been 
appointed to undertake a review of the Council's business and operating model, 
and the 'Statutory Services Budget Review' report was the initial stage of their 
work.

It was noted that the PwC report confirmed that the County Council was not 
currently in a sustainable financial position, and members were informed that the 
report would help to press the Council's case to Government.

The report highlighted that the Council was forecast to have a cumulative deficit 
of £398m by the end of 201/21 and an in year deficit that year of £148m. Whilst 
that was predicted on all savings plans being achieved with no slippage, PwC 
had identified that a significant proportion of the planned savings were at risk of 
slippage. Even moving the Council to lower cost comparators across all services 
areas would not sufficiently close the Council's financial gap over the 4 year 
period.

The Committee was informed that PwC would soon commence a second piece of 
work to look at the options to help address the financial difficulties facing the 
authority. It was clear that the Council could not resolve the problems alone and 
that a very different business and operating model was needed across the public 
sector.

Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report to Cabinet be noted, 
and that no additional comments or suggested alternative recommendations be 
made.

b. Money Matters - The County Council's Re profiled Capital 
Programme for 2016/17 to 2018/19 and later years

The Committee considered a report on the proposed re-profiling of the County 
Council's capital programme for 2016/17 to 2018/19 and, where appropriate, later 
years. This had been requested by the Cabinet at its meeting in July 2016.

It was noted that the re-profiling did not make allowance for unanticipated service 
demands e.g. out of the ordinary weather conditions which could increase costs 
of delivery. The Committee also noted that the report highlighted a number of 
specific risks within the existing programme.

Page 2



Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report to Cabinet be noted, 
and that no additional comments or suggested alternative recommendations be 
made.

c. Property Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) – Community Asset 
Transfer

The Committee considered a report in relation to the business cases submitted 
by community organisations interested in taking on the running of County Council 
building where they were no longer required for the delivery of Council services.

The report summarised the assessment of the bids to date and provided 
recommendations on the way forward. The report also clarified the approach to 
be taken regarding any further expressions of interest/business cases which may 
be received.

The Committee's attention was brought to the Great Harwood Young People's 
Service property ((Bid reference number 78a) and the Heysham Children's and 
Young People's Centre (Bid reference 102b) bids that were included in table 4 - 
proposals that were considered to be unacceptable. Having considered the bids 
further and in light of additional information, it was proposed that Cabinet be 
asked to move to table 3 to enable the bids to be further clarified and developed. 
This amendment would be reported to Cabinet at its meeting on 6 October 2016.

Members agreed that it was important to give community groups and others the 
maximum opportunity to take over surplus buildings to enable them to enhance 
and develop their vital community work including the creation of independent 
community libraries. It was noted that whilst the County Council would welcome 
further bids from community groups, there was a need for the bids to be 
submitted for consideration as soon as possible.

Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report to Cabinet including 
the proposed amendment mentioned at the meeting be noted, and that no additional 
comments or suggested alternative recommendations be made.

d. Approval of the District of Lancaster Highways and Transport 
Masterplan for Publication

The Lancaster Highways and Transport Masterplan was presented for 
consideration.

It was noted that the response to the County Council's consultation exercise on 
the draft Masterplan had largely endorsed the council's preferred option to 
improve and extend the existing transport network. This approach would see 
projects already programmed completed, the obligations under the development 
consent order for the Heysham to M6 link road fulfilled and a wider programme of 
sustainable transport measures and improvements delivered.

Page 3



The Committee welcomed the Masterplan which presented a vision and 
programme of activity to deliver the objectives set out in the County Council’s 
local transport plan and at the same time supported the growth ambitions and 
development expectations of key partners such as the Lancashire Enterprise 
Partnership and Lancaster City Council.

Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report to Cabinet be noted, 
and that no additional comments or suggested alternative recommendations be 
made.

e. Flood & Water Management Act 2010 Section 19 Investigation - 
December 2015 Floods - Initial Report

The Committee agreed that County Councillor C Dereli be allowed to speak on 
this item in accordance with Standing Order 19(1).

The Committee considered a report on the investigations which had been carried 
out by the County Council, as Lead Local Flood Authority, following the flooding 
in Lancashire in December 2015. The purpose of the investigations was to 
identify which flood risk management authorities had or still have relevant 
functions to be exercised in regard to these flood events.

It was noted that the report discharged the Council's Section 19 responsibilities 
under the Flood and Management Water Act 2010. The Committee was 
informed that the report started the major process of publishing the findings of the 
Lancashire flood risk partnership into how local communities were flooded, so 
that ways of managing the risks and impacts of similar events in the future could 
be developed.

The Committee acknowledged that the December 2015 flooding had been 
caused by the extreme and unprecedented rainfall events of November and 
December 2015. However, it was important that all risk management authorities 
and other responsible partners including land owners undertook their duties 
seriously and fully utilised the powers available to them to manage the risks and 
impacts of similar events in the future.

The Committee was informed that an individual report for each district council 
area in Lancashire would be published in the near future. These would cover the 
investigations undertaken at each identified location, any flood risk improvements 
already completed and the opportunities for further investigations and/or works.

It was also reported that since the publication of the investigation report 
representations about flooding in the Burscough area had been received from the 
Burscough Parish Council and the West Lancashire Labour Group. It was noted 
that a meeting had already been arranged with the Parish Council to discuss 
flooding in its area.

Page 4



Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report to Cabinet be noted, 
and that no additional comments or suggested alternative recommendations be 
made.

5. Forthcoming Individual Cabinet Member Key Decisions

The Committee considered the following reports on Key Decisions due to be 
taken by individual Cabinet Members as indicated:

a. Procurement Report - Request for Approval to Commence 
Procurement Exercises

The Committee considered a report to go to the Leader of the County Council and 
the Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services on the proposed 
commencement of procurement exercises in relation to:

(i) Occupational Health Services;

(ii) Framework for the provision of Home Care Services across Lancashire for 
older people with physical disabilities, people with learning 
disabilities/autism and people with mental health problems; and

(iii) Extra Care Services.

Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report to the Leader of the 
County Council and the Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services be 
noted, and that no additional comments or suggested alternative 
recommendations be made.

b. Implementation of the Care Act 2014 - Approval of revised Adult 
Social Care Policies and Procedures, incorporating Telecare and 
Protection of Property

The Committee considered a report to go to the Cabinet Member for Adult and 
Community Services in respect of revisions to the following Adult Social care 
Policies:

 Protection of Property
 Telecare

It was reported that recommendation (ii), as set out in the report, was 
unnecessary and had been withdrawn as the Council's Constitution already 
permitted the Cabinet Member and officers to undertake the proposed action, and 
the matter had also been covered in an earlier report to the Cabinet Member.

Resolved:
1. That recommendation (i), as set out in the report to the Cabinet Member for 

Adult and Community Services be noted, and that no additional comments or 
suggested alternative recommendations be made.

Page 5



2. That the withdrawal of recommendation (ii) as reported at the meeting be 
noted.

6. Urgent Business

None.

7. Date of Next Meeting

It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be held on Tuesday 8 
November 2016 at 2.00 p.m. at County Hall, Preston.

8. Exclusion of Press and Public

Resolved: - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
press and public should be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following items of business on the grounds that there would be a likely disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in the appropriate paragraphs of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 1972 and that in all circumstances of 
the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information.

9. Forthcoming Individual Cabinet Member Key Decisions

The Committee considered the following reports on Key Decisions due to be 
taken by individual Cabinet Members as indicated:

a. Award of a Flexible Agreement relating to the provision of 
supported living services - Transforming Care: Pan Lancashire

(Not for Publication – Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. It is considered that in all the 
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information)

The Committee considered a report to go to the Cabinet Member for Adult and 
Community Services on the award of a Flexible Agreement relating to the 
provision of supported living services - Transforming Care: Pan Lancashire.

Resolved: That the recommendation set out in the report to the Cabinet 
Member for Adult and Community Services be noted and that no additional 
comments or suggested alternative recommendations be made.

b. Award of Contracts for the Acceptance and Composting of Green 
Waste Arising in the Administrative County of Lancashire and 
Blackpool

(Not for Publication – Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. It is considered that in all the

Page 6



circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information)

The Committee considered a report to go to the Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Planning and Cultural Services on the award of contracts for the 
Acceptance and Composting of Green Waste Arising in the Administrative 
County of Lancashire and Blackpool.

Resolved: - That the recommendation set out in the report to the Cabinet 
Member for Environment, Planning and Cultural Services be noted and that no 
additional comments or suggested alternative recommendations be made.

c. Disposal of Land at Bluebell Way Preston

(Not for Publication – Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. It is considered that in all the 
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information)

The Committee considered a report to go to the Deputy Leader of the County 
Council on the disposal of land at Bluebell Way, Preston and the award of a 
conditional contract for the sale of the site.

Resolved: - That the recommendations set out in the report to the Deputy 
Leader of the County Council be noted and that no additional comments or 
suggested alternative recommendations be made.

d. Disposal by way of formal tender Residential development land at 
Liverpool Road, Hutton, Preston

(Not for Publication – Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. It is considered that in all the 
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information)

The Committee considered a report to go to the Deputy Leader of the County 
Council on the sale of land at Liverpool Road, Hutton, Nr Preston.

Resolved: - That the recommendations set out in the report to the Deputy Leader 
of the County Council be noted and that no additional comments or suggested 
alternative recommendations be made.

I Young
Director of Governance, Finance 
and Public Services

County Hall 
Preston

Page 7



Page 8



Report to the Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services, Cabinet 
Member for Health and Wellbeing, Deputy Leader of the County Council, and 
the Leader of the County Council
Report submitted by: Head of Service - Procurement
Dates: 9 November, 11 November and 16 November 2016

Part I

Electoral Divisions affected:
All

Procurement Report – Request for Approval to Commence Procurement 
Exercises
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contact for further information:
Rachel Tanner, (01772) 534904, Head of Service - Procurement, 
rachel.tanner@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

This report sets out recommendations to approve the commencement of five 
procurement exercises for: 

(i) Design and Consultancy Service for Property Construction
(ii) Lancashire County Council Insurance Programme
(iii) NHS Health Check Services
(iv) Mental Health Rehabilitation Services
(v) Provision of Crisis Services

The procurement exercises will be undertaken by the Procurement Service in line 
with EU Regulations, the County Council's Procurement Rules, and as outlined in 
Appendix 'A' to this report.

These are deemed to be Key Decisions and the provisions of Standing Order 
No.25 have been complied with.

Recommendation

The Leader of the County Council is asked to approve the commencement of the 
procurement exercises as set out in Appendix 'A' of this report in respect of:

(i) Design and Consultancy Service for Property Construction;

Page 9

Item 4a

mailto:rachel.tanner@lancashire.gov.uk


The Deputy Leader of the County Council is asked to approve the commencement 
of the procurement exercises as set out in Appendix 'A' of this report in respect of:

(ii) Lancashire County Council Insurance Programme;

The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing is asked to approve the 
commencement of the procurement exercises as set out in Appendix 'A' of this 
report in respect of:

(iii) NHS Health Check Services;

The Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services is asked to approve the 
commencement of the procurement exercises as set out in Appendix 'A' of this 
report in respect of:

(iv)Mental Health Rehabilitation Services; and
(v) Provision of Crisis Services

Background and Advice 

In July 2016, Full Council approved an amendment to the approval process for 
procurement exercises which are deemed to be Key Decisions in order to enhance 
the transparency and efficiency of decision making.

In line with the approved procurement rules, approval is required from the 
appropriate Cabinet Member to commence the five procurement exercises detailed 
in Appendix 'A' of this report, which are deemed to be Key Decisions.

Appendix 'A' of this report sets out the details of the individual procurement 
exercises, and the basis upon which the Procurement Service proposes to carry out 
the processes including:

 the description of the service being procured;

 the estimated annual contract value and the funding position;

 the contract duration and

 the proposed basis for the evaluation of the tender submissions received.

Where approval has been received from the Cabinet Member to undertake a tender 
process which is deemed to be a Key Decision, the subsequent award of the 
contract on the satisfactory completion of the tender exercise shall not be deemed a 
Key Decision and can be approved by the relevant Head of Service or Director.

On the conclusion of the procurement exercises, the details of the contract awards 
will be reported to Cabinet on a monthly basis and recorded on the Scheme of 

Page 10



Delegation recording system, in accordance with the County Council's procurement 
rules. 

Consultations

Relevant Heads of Service and key operational staff have been consulted in drawing 
up the proposals to undertake the procurement exercises included within this report.

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Legal/Procurement

Failure to take steps to procure new contracts and continuing with the current 
arrangements would contravene the County Council's procurement rules and the 
Public Contracts Regulations 2015, exposing the County Council to an increased risk 
of legal challenge. Furthermore, failure to award the contracts may result in the 
County Council facing difficulty in delivering these services.

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

Procurement Rules July 2016 Rachel Tanner (01772 
534904) Head of 
Procurement

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A

Page 11



Page 12



                                                                               Appendix 'A'

Cabinet Member
Leader of the County Council

Procurement Title
Design Consultancy Services for Property Construction

Procurement Option
Open OJEU Tender

New or Existing Provision
New

Estimated Contract Value and Funding Arrangements
Estimated annual value between £350,000 and £625,000, and £1,400,000 to 
£2,500,000 over the maximum lifetime of the contract.
The budget is allocated to Design & Construction (Buildings) and is Capital funding. 
The suppliers are paid from the fee received by the County Council for the individual 
project.  

Contract Duration
Initial period of 2 years with an option to extend the contract beyond the initial term 
to a maximum of a further 2 years.

Lotting
The framework will be divided into seven lots. 

Lot 1 - Architect led consultancy team to provide multidisciplinary design and 
contract administration for projects with a construction cost up to £999,999.
Lot 2 – Architect led consultancy team to provide multidisciplinary design and 
contract administration for projects with a construction cost of £1,000,000 to 
£2,999,999.
Lot 3 – Mechanical & Electrical Engineering consultant, working with in-house team 
and Mechanical & Electrical Engineering consultant, as Lead Consultant. 
Lot 4 – Structural Engineering consultant, working with in-house team.
Lot 5 – Construction (Design & Management) Principal Designer, working with in-
house team.
Lot 6 – Quantity Surveying consultant, working with in-house team.
Lot 7 – Landscape Architecture consultant, working with in-house team.

Where a project has an estimated construction cost exceeding £3million, suppliers 
from either Lot 2 (full team) or Lots 3 to 7 (individual professions) will be invited to 
tender via mini completion.

Page 13



Evaluation
Quality Criteria 60% Financial Criteria 40%

Social Value will account for 5% of the quality criteria focusing on promoting training 
and employment opportunities for local people and promoting environmental 
sustainability in business and designs

Contract Detail

The purpose of the framework will be to supplement services provided by the County 
Council in-house design practice as and when necessary enabling the service to 
respond quickly when capacity to take on new work needs expanding.

A contract was established previously in 2008 and expired in 2012.  From 2012 all 
design consultancy work has been conducted in-house using agency staff to support 
the service. This approach has been identified as being costly to the County Council 
and better value for money could be achieved by procuring a specialist consultancy.

As part of its drive to achieve best value the County Council is seeking to set up a 
Framework Agreement through which it can procure design consultancy services. It 
is the objective to provide public buildings which are aesthetically pleasing, 
constructed to good standards, fit for purpose and representing good value for 
money.  

The design and construction expected fees are £6.4 million over the life of the 
agreement with 10% of this going through the framework (approximately £610,000) 
in addition the framework allows access for other local authorities including UCLan 
and Lancashire Constabulary, therefore the estimated Framework value is between 
£1.4 million and £2.5 million. No business will be guaranteed to the successful 
consultancies through the framework, services will be called off and paid for at the 
time of delivery.

Page 14



Cabinet Member
Deputy Leader of the County Council

Procurement Title
Lancashire County Council Insurance Programme

Procurement Option
OJEU – Open Tender

New or Existing Provision
Existing – current contract end date 31st May 2017

Estimated Annual Contract Value and Funding Arrangements
£2,211,000 per annum, £11,055,000 over maximum lifetime of contract. 
Premiums are paid by the Insurance Team and are funded by revenue budgets 
recharged across the County Council.

Contract Duration
Initial period of 3 years with an option to extend the contract beyond the initial term 
for two further periods of 1 year each.

Lotting
The Insurance Programme will be lotted into 11 classes as per the information 
provided within the 'contract detail' section below.

Evaluation
Quality Criteria 40-50% Financial Criteria 50-60%

Weightings will vary between Lots reflecting the difference in requirements for claims 
management handling expertise. Certain classes have higher numbers of lower 
value claims to manage, whilst others have relatively few, high value claims.
Social Value will account for 5% of the quality criteria focusing on promoting training 
and employment opportunities and promoting environmental sustainability.

Contract Detail

The County Council Insurance Programme covers a number of annual insurance 
policies for Lancashire County Council. The Insurance Programme will be lotted  into 
the following classes of insurance:

OJEU Tender
 Property (including money)
 All Risk (contents specific to the museum service)
 Work in Progress (Contractors All Risk)
 Terrorism
 Casualty
 Motor vehicles (General and Leased vehicles)
 Engineering (Inspection & Insurance)
 Group Personal Accident & Travel

Page 15



 Fidelity Guarantee / Crime insurance
 Marine
 Motor - Uninsured Loss Recovery
 Multi lot (If an insurer won for e.g. Property, Motor & Casualty, would they 

give a package discount)

Casualty Insurance is not currently part of insurance programme, however, the 
intention is to align and include this within the 2017 programme.

Fidelity Guarantee insures the County Council against acts of fraud, theft or 
dishonesty by an employee in the course of employment. Fidelity guarantee was 
part of the previous Insurance Programme. From June 2013 it was determined more 
cost effective, given rising premium costs and minimal claims, to self-insure by 
setting aside a pool of money to be used if any unexpected losses occurred. This 
was to be reviewed each year. It is the intention to obtain quotes during this exercise 
and re-evaluate the position.

The current Insurance Programme was procured by way of an open OJEU tender 
in 2012 with a start date of 1 June 2012. Long term agreements (LTA) were put in 
place based on an initial contract term of 3 years, plus an extension option of 1+1 
years. The LTAs expire on 31 May 2017. The exception is Casualty insurance which 
was procured in 2014, and technically can be extended up to 31 May 2018, so that 
it can be aligned with the rest of the Insurance Programme, the extension will not be 
activated. 

An annual premium is paid to insurers to cover each class of insurance. The County 
Council will in some cases agree to pay an excess (e.g. up to £1 million on 
employers/public liability) before the insurer starts to pay out to help keep premiums 
down, known as annual deductibles. The County Council ordinarily agrees with 
insurers an Annual Stop Loss (ASL) figure. This is the figure agreed where the 
County Council's total of claims payments made within the deductible is the 
maximum paid. Anything over the ASL the insurers pay or refund the County 
Council. This usually applies to Property, Motor, and Employers/Public liability 
insurance classes.

The County Council uses the insurance broker Arthur J Gallagher (AJG) for 
consultation and brokerage services. AJG will lead on the production of tender 
documentation, evaluation, and completion of award. AJG will also advise on 
suitable lotting of insurance classes, and if engaged by the County Council, 
undertake an assessment of the current levels of cover currently being requested 
for each of the insurance classes and advise on cover options that offer best value 
to the County Council.

The County Council's Procurement Service will provide governance advice 
concerning the procurement process and assist with administering the procurement 
through the etendering system.

Page 16



Cabinet Member
Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing

Procurement Title
NHS Health Checks Services

Procurement Option
OJEU – Open Tender

New or Existing Provision
Existing services which shall be remodelled to provide a more robust service offer. 
The current contract ends 31st March 2017

Estimated Annual Contract Value and Funding Arrangements
£600,000 (Public Health Grant)
Potential Total Contract Value: £2,400,000 (4 years)

Contract Duration
Initial period of 1 year with an option to extend the contract beyond the initial term, 
for any number of agreed periods, to a maximum of a further 3 years depending on 
reviews of funding and need. 

Lotting
Delivery of the Countywide NHS Health Checks service will be offered as two lots:

1. NHS Health Checks in Communities: (£400,000 capped budget) 
2. NHS Health Checks in the Workplace and Places of Worship: (£200,000 

capped budget) 

It is recognised that the market comprises of providers specialising in delivering 
services within different sectors; and therefore any one provider may not be 
proficient in providing health checks within both sectors (Communities and 
Workplace / Places of Worship). Therefore separating the service into two lots 
promotes effective competition and the potential for more effective service delivery.  

Evaluation
Quality Criteria 80% Financial Criteria 20%

Social Value will account for 10% of the quality criteria and the objective will be 
focused on promoting equity and fairness.

Page 17



Background / Advice:
Lancashire County Council's aim is that 20% of the eligible population is offered a 
health check every year. The uptake target is for 75% of those invited to attend. 
Providing opportunistic offers for NHS Health Checks across a variety of settings 
including the workplace, places of worship and communities within Lancashire 
ensures equity and increase access to and uptake of health checks for citizens 
residing in Lancashire. 

This NHS Health Check programme is aimed at people living and working in 
Lancashire who are between 40 and 74 years old. Particular attention should be 
paid to communities who are known to be at increased risk of developing 
cardiovascular disease, for example deprived communities, South East Asian 
communities and working men.

These services had previously been subject to Locally Enhanced Service (LES) 
Contracts with General Practitioners across Lancashire. It is recognised that primary 
care settings are perhaps not the most effective option to deliver the services. This 
decision to divert a proportion of the budget to competitive tender was taken for the 
following reasons:

 The tendered contracts provided for interventions in communities, the 
workplace and places of worship with the intention of a greater uptake in 
health checks where the services reaching out to target service users. The 
services allow easy access for people who are employed to attend either in 
the workplace or at flexible times such as evenings and weekends outside of 
regular General Practitioners hours.

 Use of third party organisations provided additional capacity for delivery 
against national mandated targets. Not all General Practitioners are signed 
up to deliver the health checks and therefore some Lancashire residents 
would be unable to access the programme at all.

 The tendered contract allows us to further target low uptake areas to tackle 
health inequality issues and to target areas of deprivation across Lancashire.

For the reasons set out above it is proposed that these services remain with third 
party providers and be retendered.

The estimated number of health checks to be performed Countywide across both 
sectors per annum is 18,000, and this will be split between lots as:

Lot 1 12,000
Lot 2 6,000

Services
The services are intended to:

 Identify an individual’s risk of cardiovascular disease (CVD)
 Communicate this risk in a way that the individual understands; and 
 Manage this risk by appropriate lifestyle advice, follow-up, intervention 

and management.  
 Deliver 20% of the health checks outside core working hours. 
 Offer health checks to more people that would fall into the 20% 'At Risk' 

Page 18



category.
 Deliver a high quality, patient focused NHS Health Check service;
 Improve access and uptake to the NHS Health Check;
 Improve systematic management relating to the prevention of CVD;
 Collect data as required by the national health check minimum dataset  

for every service user that attends the service and electronically transfer 
data securely back into GP practice clinical system;

 Improve long term health outcomes and the quality of life for patients and 
their carers;

 Tackle the underlying determinants of ill health and health inequalities; 
 Increase life expectancy for men and for women;
 Reduce mortality rates from heart disease, stroke and related diseases in 

people under 75; 
 Reduce the inequalities gap between the fifth of areas with the worst 

health and deprivation indicators and the population as a whole. 
 See an increase in health outcomes of people having health checks in the 

lowest deprivation areas.

The health checks focus on early intervention with the intention to reduce spending 
on more specialist health services in the future, which would be more expensive to 
deliver; and also to provide a better quality of life for residents within Lancashire. 
The number of health checks being delivered against set targets will be frequently 
monitored through contract management activity.  
 

Page 19



Cabinet Member
Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services

Procurement Title
Provision of Mental Health Rehabilitation Services

Procurement Option
OJEU – Open Tender

New or Existing Provision
The framework agreement will replace an open market basis upon which services 
currently operate. 

Estimated Annual Contract Value and Funding Arrangements
In the order of £10,400,000 (Potential Total Contract Value - £41,600,000 over 4 
years)
Mental health rehabilitation services are joint funded between the local authorities 
and the Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs). Each package of care is 
expected to be a 50/50 split, therefore the expected cost per year will be:

LCC Adult and Community Services Budget £3,800,000
Blackburn with Darwen Council £1,300,000
Lancashire and Blackburn CCGs £5,100,000
Blackpool CCG 
(with Blackpool Council funding)

£0 - £200,000

Contract Duration
The framework agreement will be established for a period of 4 years.

Lotting
The delivery of mental health rehabilitation services will be separated into three 
service type lots:

 Supported Housing (to also include home care)
 Residential
 Nursing

The residential and nursing lots providing services from the service providers care 
homes will be split into two geographical zones – Lancashire and Blackburn with 
Darwen. 

The supported housing lot providing community based services will be further split 
into four geographical zones – Central Lancashire, East Lancashire, North 
Lancashire and Blackburn with Darwen. Supported housing is likely to be the most 
appropriate service model for the majority of service users therefore progress 
towards to even coverage of provision is a key objective.

Blackburn with Darwen Council will use the framework to call off packages within its 
area. There will be flexibility for Blackpool CCG to call off a relatively low value of 
services from the relevant lot at any point during the framework term. Blackpool 
CCG have contract arrangements already in place but may seek to augment 

Page 20



capacity through this framework.

Evaluation
Quality Criteria 60% Financial Criteria 40%

Of which Social Value will form 10% of the quality criteria, the objective will be 
focused on promoting training and employment opportunities for the people of 
Lancashire. 

Contract Detail
Rehabilitation is an intermediate short term service of up to 2 years, for adults with 
needs in relation to their mental health.  This support can be provided to meet the 
identified needs of individuals within their own home, a supported housing setting or 
residential/nursing setting. 

The focus of the service will be on promoting rehabilitation and recovery, providing 
specialist time limited support to deliver effective rehabilitation and recovery which 
will lead to individuals making choices, taking control, progressing to independent 
living, social inclusion and wellbeing.  

The rehabilitation services provision is provided by the independent and voluntary 
sectors.  Providers are registered with the Care Quality Commission, and typically 
arrangements are made through the County Council for people who become eligible 
for support following assessment and the application of Care Act eligibility 
criteria/threshold. 

The County Council is committed to achieving the following strategic objectives:
 Collaborative commissioning between Health and Social Care – tested and 

agreed joint commissioning arrangements.
 Developing the Mental Health Pathway – having an agreed model of care for 

rehabilitation which contributes to the whole system pathway, providing a 
greater focus on community based service delivery. Although it is accepted 
that in some cases residential will be the most appropriate service delivery 
model an objective will be to reduce numbers of service users in residential 
and increase numbers of service users in supported housing.

 Strengthening the approach to contracting – by being clear with providers 
about our requirements, that there are robust contracts in place and there is 
greater emphasis on quality, standards, performance and monitoring.

 Shaping the market – by being specific about the number of providers we 
contract with, offering contracts based on specific geographical zones and 
promoting a sustainable and responsive market for rehabilitation services.

This procurement process represents an agreed commissioning intention to partner 
with the 8 Pan Lancashire CCGs (including those operating within the boundaries 
of the two unitary councils) for joint procurement, led by the County Council, of 
community-based Mental Health rehabilitation services across health and social 
care on a Lancashire-wide footprint.  

This procurement will run alongside a NHS procurement for wholly NHS funded 

Page 21



mental health rehabilitation placements in independent hospitals and represents a 
significant step to improving the rehabilitation pathway. The decision was taken to 
procure the frameworks separately due to the differentiation between the service 
types, the minimal benefits to tenderers in a joint procurement and the challenges 
in merging timescales.

The procurement strategy has been informed by a 4 week market consultation 
exercise that engaged more than 30 providers and partners on a range of issues 
including the award criteria, lotting and key performance indicators.

Services to 124 service users are currently delivered by around 50 service providers 
within Lancashire and Blackburn with Darwen. It is anticipated that this may slightly 
reduce to approximately 40 - 50 distinct providers.

The number of providers to achieve a place on the framework will depend on the 
capacity of the highest scoring providers.

Providers will compete on quality and price within the geographic zone(s) they bid 
for. Rehabilitation packages will be offered via mini competitions and providers may 
submit bids at or under the tendered rate at this stage. Mini competitions will be 
evaluated on of 60% quality (based on the service user's specific needs), and 40% 
price, to allow providers to submit a relevant price for the service users specific 
needs.

Whilst these services have not previously been tendered using a price weighting, 
the rationale has been communicated to providers as being:

 Using a fixed rate risks setting the wrong price – providers regularly comment 
that our rates do not reflect market conditions.

 Allowing providers to set their own rate generates true competition in the 
market enabling us to secure the best rates that reflect market conditions 
whilst allowing providers to determine a fair price for care for their individual 
organisation.

 The proposed evaluation ratio of 60% for quality and 40% for price places a 
majority weighing on quality supporting our commitment to quality 
improvement whilst striking a reasonable balance to ensure best value. 

By asking providers to submit the price they will charge, the County Council intends 
to utilise the expertise of the individuals who are best placed to make the judgement 
over current and future potential costs. The pricing to be submitted will reflect not 
only a fair cost of care but also the true cost of care, inclusive of costs specific to 
each individual organisation, that is set at a level which would enable a provider to 
meet the contractual service, workforce and quality requirements and also their own 
business needs.

Page 22



Cabinet Member
Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services

Procurement Title
Provision of  Crisis Services 

Procurement Option
OJEU – Open Tender

New or Existing Provision
Existing – the current contracts expire on 31st March 2017.

Estimated Annual Contract Value and Funding Arrangements
Estimated to be up to £1,650,000 subject to continued CCG funding (East & North)

This is made up of: 
LCC Adult and Community Services Budget: £600,000 - £1,200,000
CCG funding: £0 – £450,000

Potential total contract value: £8,250,000. 

A range is given for the value as there will be flexibility for block hours to be varied 
in order to mitigate the impact of seasonal pressures or utilise varying funding 
provided by CCG's.

Central Lancashire Crisis Services will be tendered separately to East and North 
for the reasons set out in the Contract Detail.

Contract Duration
Initial period of 2 years with an option to extend the contracts beyond the initial 
term, for any number of agreed periods, to a maximum of a further 3 years.

Lotting
The Crisis Services will be separated into geographical lots. This procurement will 
only concern East and North Lancashire. 

Geographical lots:
 East Lancashire
 North Lancashire

By separating the service into lots this will encourage applications from SME's and 
will align to the boundaries of the Lancashire Clinical Commissioning Groups in the 
NHS in the context of integrating health and social care. 

Page 23



Evaluation
Quality Criteria 60% Financial Criteria 40%

Of which Social Value will form 10% of the quality criteria, the objective will be 
focused on promoting training and employment opportunities for the people of 
Lancashire. 

Contract Detail
Crisis Services are a domiciliary care service providing support and care for adults 
in their own homes when an acute situation occurs and who without additional 
intensive support would normally be admitted to hospital or residential care. The 
goal is to enable the Service User to remain in his or her own home during the period 
in which support is required and to return to their previous independent state where 
possible. 

The principal aims of the Crisis Service are to:

i) Provide short-term personal care and practical support to enable Service 
Users to remain safe and secure in their own homes for as long as is practical 
and according to their wishes.

    
ii) To provide a Service, which is responsive, reliable and flexible to meet the 

needs of Service Users, as identified throughout the period of intervention.

The services will be available 24 hours per day, 365 days per year. 

The contract will be let on a block purchase arrangement, with a minimum 
guaranteed level hours per week. There will be flexibility for these block hours to be 
increased in order to mitigate the impact of seasonal pressures or utilise funding 
provided by CCG's.

The Crisis and Rehabilitation Service contract for Central Lancashire has for 
historical reasons integrated crisis services with rehabilitation services. The 
rehabilitation element of the contract is intended to be incorporated into the 
forthcoming Reablement Services procurement, anticipated to be tendered in 
January 2017, with new contracts intended to commence July / August 2017. The 
Crisis element of the Crisis and Rehabilitation Service contract for Central 
Lancashire will be procured at the same time as Reablement but will result in a 
separate Central Crisis Services Contract, consistent with those services procured 
for the East and the North of the county.

In order to split the two service elements without impacting on frontline service 
delivery, it is proposed that the current Central Lancashire contract remain in place 
until the Reablement procurement concludes. Approval to procure Crisis Services 
in Central Lancashire will be subject to a separate report.

Page 24



Document is Restricted

Page 25

Item 8aBy virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972.  It is considered that all the circumstances
of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information.





Document is Restricted

Page 29

Item 8bBy virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972.  It is considered that all the circumstances
of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information.





Document is Restricted

Page 33

Item 8cBy virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972.  It is considered that all the circumstances
of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information.




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 4 October 2016
	4a Procurement Report - Request for Approval to Commence Procurement Exercises
	Appendix A

	8a Award of Vehicle Body Building Framework Agreement - Lots 6, 8, 9, 11
	8b Approval to Award Contracts for Care and Support Services in Lancashire Prisons
	8c Primary Care Commissions

